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July 30, 2015 
 
Karl Dettmann 
435 Matterhorn Drive 
Verona, WI  53593 
 
RE:  Proposed Agricultural Building at 4200 County Hwy P 
 Town of Cross Plains 
 
Dear Mr. Dettmann, 
 
This correspondence is to express my concern regarding a recent zoning permit, DCPZP-2015-00547, 
that was issued by the Dane County Zoning Division for the property at 4200 County Highway P in the 
Town of Cross Plains.  The zoning permit allows for a 14,699 sq.ft. agricultural accessory building to be 
constructed on the premises for the purposed of agricultural production.  It was explained that the 
intention of this building is to assist in the production and storage of grapes that will be produced on the 
property.  It has also been explained that you are in the process of establishing a vineyard on the 
property as a farming operation.  Under Dane County Code of Ordinance Section 10.01(23f) farm is 
defined as: 
 
(23f) Farm means all land under common ownership that is primarily devoted to agricultural use. 
Agricultural Use is defined as: 
(2a) Agricultural use. Means any of the following activities conducted for the purpose of producing an 
income or livelihood: (a) Crop or forage production. (b) Keeping livestock. (c) Beekeeping. (d) Nursery, 
sod, or Christmas tree production. (e) Floriculture.  (f) Aquaculture. (g) Fur farming. (h) Forest 
management. (i) Enrolling land in a federal agricultural commodity payment program or a federal or state 
agricultural land conservation payment program. 
 
As you are aware, property is zoned A-1 Exclusive Agriculture and is located in the Agricultural 
Preservation Area as designated in the Town of Cross Plains Comprehensive Plan.  The primary use 
permitted on this property is agricultural production.  Ancillary uses could possibly be permitted in this 
district in conjunction with an active farm operation.  Commercial operations such as, restaurants, wine 
tasting rooms, wedding/event facilities are prohibited in the A-1 Exclusive Agriculture Zoning District.  
Also the production of wine from grapes that have not been grown on the property would also be 
considered a commercial operation and thus prohibited in the A-1 Exclusive Agriculture Zoning District. 
 
Dane County Zoning Division has reviewed the current conditions of the property and have determined 
that it is not a farm operation.  The majority of the property is wooded with steep slope topography.  A 
majority of the crop field has recently been zoned for residential development.  The remaining fields, 
approximately 11 acres, are dormant.  There a single-family dwelling on the property that is used as 
rental property. The proposed agricultural building is being located in an agricultural field. There is no 
evidence that the land is devoted to agricultural use. 
 



Please be informed that ancillary uses such as Agricultural Entertainment is a farm based activity and 
may only occur on the property containing a legitimate farm operation.  Given that a farm operation is 
not present on your property, Agricultural Entertainment is prohibited.   
 
With the existing wooded areas, the recent residential development, and the proposed building, the 
property has very little land remaining to establish a farm operation.  It appears that the majority of land 
is devoted to items other than agricultural uses.  Please note that farms, by definition, must have lands 
primarily devoted to agricultural uses. 
 
My concern is that the proposed agricultural building is not being constructed for the purposes of 
agricultural production.  The design of the building appears likely to be used for other purposes.  The 
building does not have large overhead doors for the ingress/egress of farm equipment or for the 
movement of agricultural product.  It appears that the building is designed more as an assembly hall. 
 
If the construction of this building is for other purposes, I strongly suggest that you obtain approvals for 
the intended use prior to the construction of this building.  Using this building for commercial purposes 
will be considered a violation of Dane County Code of Ordinances and operations will be required to 
cease immediately through injunctive relief. 
 
I have explained the development limitations of this property to you on previous occasions.  The Town 
of Cross Plains Comprehensive Plan designates the area as an Agricultural Preservation Area.  This 
area is intended for agriculture production and not for commercial purposes.  Land use conflicts may 
arise from uses other than agricultural purposes.  Please be aware that the Comprehensive Plan may 
need to be amended to support commercial activity on your property. 
 
The following is a list of land uses permitted in other zoning districts.  If the building will be used for 
these purposes, I would strongly suggest securing the proper zoning prior to the construction of the 
building. 
 
Banquet hall for wedding and events – C-1 Commercial Zoning District 
Outdoor theater for wedding events – C-1 Commercial Zoning District w/ Conditional Use Permit 
Restaurant / Tavern (tasting room) – C-1 Commercial Zoning District w/ Conditional Use Permit 
Winery / Wine Production (not grown on property) – C-1 Commercial Zoning District 
 
I am making you aware of these facts to avoid conflicts in the future.  If you have any questions or 
concerns, please feel free to call me at (608) 266-9078. 
 
Respectfully, 

 
Roger Lane 
Dane County Zoning Administrator 
 
 
Cc:   Nancy Meinholz, Cross Plains Town Clerk 
 Greg Hyer, Town of Cross Plains Chair 
 Town of Cross Plain Plan Commission members 
 Dane County Zoning and Land Regulation Committee members 
 Andy Fieber, Aldo Partners, Inc. 
 
 



 
 
 
 

 














